
 
  
 
  
 
 
 
Notice to persons with special needs: For those requiring special assistance or 
accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, arrangements for a sign language 
interpreter or services necessary for effective communication for qualified persons with 
disabilities should be made as soon as possible, but no later than 72 hours before the 
scheduled event.  Listening devices are available for persons with hearing impairments. 
 
Please contact the MaryAnne Cruzado 702-267-1515 or TTY: 7-1-1, at least 72 hours in 
advance to request a sign language interpreter. You may also submit your request by using 
Contact Henderson. 
  
The Chairman reserves the right to hear agenda items out of order, combine two or more 
agenda items for consideration, remove an item from the agenda, or delay discussion 
relating to an item on the agenda at any time.  All items are action items unless otherwise 
noted. 
 
Individuals speaking on an item will be limited to three (3) minutes and spokespersons for a 
group will be limited to ten (10) minutes.  
 
Backup materials for agenda items can be found at: 
http://www.cityofhenderson.com/redevelopment_agency/meeting_agendas_2013.php 
To request backup materials, please contact MaryAnne Cruzado at (702)267-1515. 
 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. CONFIRMATION OF POSTING AND ROLL CALL 
 
III. ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA (For Possible Action) 
 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Note:  Items discussed under Public Comment cannot be acted upon at this meeting, 
but may be referred to a future agenda for consideration (NRS 241.020).  Individuals 
speaking on an item will be limited to three (3) minutes and spokespersons for a group 
will be limited to ten (10) minutes.  

 
V. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. MINUTES—CITY OF HENDERSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN 
COMMITTEE MEETING OF AUGUST 27, 2013 (For Possible Action) 

    
APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM THE CITY OF HENDERSON 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE MEETING OF  
AUGUST 27, 2013. 

(CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE)  

CITY OF HENDERSON 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE 

 MEETING AGENDA 
 

Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, September 24, 2013 
3:30 p.m. 
Meeting Inquiries: (702)267-1515

City Hall Annex 
City Hall Annex Conference Room 

280 Water Street 
Henderson, Nevada 89015 



2. REQUEST FOR A RESIDENTIAL IMPROVEMENT GRANT FOR 429 W. 
BASIC ROAD (For Possible Action) 
  
APPROVE A RESIDENTIAL IMPROVEMENT GRANT FOR 429 W. BASIC 
ROAD. 
 

3. REQUEST FOR A RESIDENTIAL IMPROVEMENT GRANT FOR 206 W. 
BASIC ROAD (For Possible Action) 
 
APPROVE A RESIDENTIAL IMPROVEMENT GRANT FOR 206 W. BASIC  
ROAD. 

 
4. REQUEST FOR A FAÇADE IMPROVEMENT GRANT FOR 418 BASIC ROAD 

 (For Possible Action) 
 
   APPROVE A FAÇADE IMPROVEMENT GRANT FOR 418 BASIC ROAD. 
 
 

5. REQUEST FOR A TENANT IMPROVEMENT GRANT FOR 418 BASIC ROAD 
 (For Possible Action) 

 
    APPROVE A TENANT IMPROVEMENT GRANT FOR 418 BASIC ROAD. 
 

6. REQUEST FOR A SIGN GRANT FOR 418 BASIC ROAD 
 (For Possible Action) 

 
     APPROVE A SIGN GRANT FOR 418 BASIC ROAD. 

 
VI. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 Note:  Items discussed under Public Comment cannot be acted upon at this 

meeting, but may be referred to a future agenda for consideration (NRS 241.020).  
Individuals speaking on an item will be limited to three (3) minutes and 
spokespersons for a group will be limited to ten (10) minutes.  

 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

Agenda posted prior to 9:00 a.m., September 19, 2013 at the following locations: 
City Hall Annex, 280 Water Street, Lobby 

City Hall, 240 Water Street, 1st Floor Lobbies (2) 
Multigenerational Center, 250 S. Green Valley Parkway  

Whitney Ranch Recreational Center, 1575 Galleria Drive 
    Fire Station No. 86, 96 Via Antincendio 



 
 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
REGULAR MEETING SEPTEMBER 24, 2013  LC-001

 
SUBJECT MINUTES—CITY OF HENDERSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

LOAN COMMITTEE MEETING OF AUGUST 27, 2013  
 

PETITIONER Economic Development/Redevelopment Division of the Public  
Affairs Department 
 

RECOMMENDATION Approve  
 

 
 
 



 
 
  
 
 
 
 

CITY OF HENDERSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
LOAN COMMITTEE 

MINUTES 
August 27, 2013 

 
 
 
I.  CALL TO ORDER 
 

 Chairman Foster called the Redevelopment Agency Loan Committee to order 
at 3:33 p.m. in the City Hall Annex Conference Room, City Hall Annex,  

 280 Water Street, Henderson, Nevada.  
 
II.  CONFIRMATION OF POSTING AND ROLL CALL 
 

 MaryAnne Cruzado, Recording Secretary, confirmed the meeting had been 
noticed in accordance with the Open Meeting Law by posting the Agenda 
three working days prior to the meeting at City Hall, Henderson Convention 
Center, Green Valley Police Substation, and Fire Station No. 86.    

 
 
  Present:  Chairman Tom Foster 
     Roy Borsellino 
     Michelle Romero 
     Richard Serfas 
              
 
  Excused: None 
         
    
  Staff:  Rory Robinson, Assistant City Attorney III 
    MaryAnne Cruzado, Administrative Assistant III 
    Anthony Molloy, Business Development Supervisor 
    April Parra, Minutes Clerk 
           
     
  



Redevelopment Agency Loan Committee Meeting                                           Page 2 
August 27, 2013 – Minutes 
 
 
III. ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA 

 
(Motion) Ms. Romero introduced a motion to accept the agenda as presented.  The 

vote favoring approval was unanimous.  Chairman Foster declared the motion 
carried.  

 
IV.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

There were no comments presented by the public. 
 

V.  ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

1. MINUTES – CITY OF HENDERSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN 
COMMITTEE MEETING OF JUNE 25, 2013. 

Recommend approval of the minutes from the City of Henderson Redevelopment 
Agency Loan Committee meeting of June 25 2013. 

 
(Motion) Mr. Borsellino introduced a motion to approve the minutes from the City of 
 Henderson Redevelopment Agency Loan Committee meeting of 
 June 25, 2013.  The vote favoring approval was unanimous.   
 Chairman Foster declared the motion carried. 
 
2. REQUEST FOR A SIGN GRANT FOR 301 W. LAKE MEAD PARKWAY 

 
Approve a sign grant for 301 W. Lake Mead Parkway. 
 
Anthony Molloy, Business Development Supervisor, made a presentation on the 
proposed item and stated staff recommends approval not to exceed $5,000. 
 
Mr. Molloy commented that a building permit may be needed for the signage.   
 
Chairman Foster noted that an electrical inspection may be required as well. 
 

(Motion) Mr. Serfas introduced a motion to approve a sign grant for 301 W. Lake Mead 
Parkway.  The vote favoring approval was unanimous.  Chairman Foster 
declared the motion carried.  

 
VI. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 There were no comments presented by the public. 
 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to be discussed, the meeting was adjourned at  
 3:38 p.m. 

 



Redevelopment Agency Loan Committee Meeting                                           Page 3 
August 27, 2013 – Minutes 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
__________________________ 
April Parra,  
Minutes Clerk  



 
 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
REGULAR MEETING SEPTEMBER 24, 2013  LC-002

 
SUBJECT REQUEST FOR A RESIDENTIAL IMPROVEMENT GRANT FOR 

429 W. BASIC ROAD 
 

PETITIONER Economic Development/Redevelopment Division of the Public 
Affairs Department 
 

RECOMMENDATION Approve 
 

 
 
 



Residential Improvement Program Grant 
Loan Committee Meeting 

September 24, 2013 
3:30 pm City Hall Annex Conference Room 

 
Property Address:   429 W. Basic Rd 
Applicant:    Daniel and Rebecca Lopez 
Improvement:    Front Yard Fencing 
Redevelopment Area:   Downtown 
City Zoning:  DHC-RD – Downtown Highway Commercial with 

Redevelopment Overlay 
 
Summary   
The current use of this property is as a legal non-conforming single family residence in a 
DHC-RD Zone.  The application before the loan committee is for funding to assist with 
the following improvements to the existing wall in the front yard of the home: 
 

1. Repairs to damage areas of the wall; 
2. Application of two coats of stucco over the wall; 
3. Seal and paint the stucco wall. 

 
The proposed color for the wall is neutral beige.   
 
The applicant provided two estimates from licensed contractors as required by the 
Program Guidelines with the lower estimate being $2,000 provided by CNS Construction 
Inc. 
 
The total cost of the project as mentioned above is $2,000.  Although the Program will 
pay up to $2,000 for an owner occupied unit, there is a requirement for an owner 
contribution of 10%.  Therefore, the maximum amount that the applicants are eligible for 
is $1,800.   
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
It is the recommendation of staff that the Loan Committee conditionally approve a 
Residential Improvement Grant for front yard fencing improvements to 429 W. Basic 
Road in an amount not to exceed $1,800 based on the following listed conditions of 
approval:   
 

1. Execution of Grant Agreement; 
2. Issuance of a City of Henderson Building Permit if required; 
3. Improvements completed as described on estimate 
4. Applicant to provide Agency with a copy of contractor’s current City of 

Henderson Business License and State Contractor’s License. 
 



 
 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
REGULAR MEETING SEPTEMBER 24, 2013  LC-003

 
SUBJECT REQUEST FOR A RESIDENTIAL IMPROVEMENT GRANT FOR 

206 W. BASIC ROAD 
 

PETITIONER Economic Development/Redevelopment Division of the Public 
Affairs Department 
 

RECOMMENDATION Approve 
 

 
 
 



Residential Improvement Program Grant 
Loan Committee Meeting 

September 24, 2013 
3:30 pm City Hall Annex Conference Room 

 
Property Address:   206 W. Basic Rd 
Applicant:    Walt Conrad 
Improvement:    Exterior Façade Painting 
Redevelopment Area:   Downtown 
City Zoning:  DCC-RD – Downtown Core Commercial with 

Redevelopment Overlay 
Summary   
The current use of this property is as a legal non-conforming single family residence in a 
DCC-RD Zone.  The application before the loan committee is for funding to assist with 
the following improvements to the existing exterior façade of the home: 
 

1. Add pop outs around 8 windows on the front and sides of the home; 
2. Repairs to exterior stucco; 
3. Caulk around the windows; 
4. Paint new pop outs around the windows; 
5. Paint eves and paint. 

 
The proposed color for the field is Toque White and Trim Aleutan.  
 
The applicant provided two estimates from licensed contractors: 
 
American Painting LLC -  $1,875.00 
CertaPro Painters -  $2,100.00 (this estimate did not include the addition of the 

pop outs) 
 
The applicant is using American Painting at a cost of $1,875.  Although the Program will 
pay up to $1,500 for an owner occupied unit, there is a requirement for an owner 
contribution of 15%.  Therefore, the maximum amount that the applicants are eligible for 
is $1,500 with the owner paying $300.00. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
It is the recommendation of staff that the Loan Committee conditionally approve a 
Residential Improvement Grant for façade painting to 206 W. Basic Road in an amount 
not to exceed $1,500 based on the following listed conditions of approval:   
 

1. Execution of Grant Agreement; 
2. Issuance of a City of Henderson Building Permit if required; 
3. Improvements completed as described on estimate; 
4. Applicant to provide Agency with a copy of contractor’s current City of 

Henderson Business License and State Contractor’s License. 



 
 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
REGULAR MEETING SEPTEMBER 24, 2013  LC-004

 
SUBJECT REQUEST FOR A FAÇADE IMPROVEMENT GRANT FOR 418 

BASIC ROAD 
 

PETITIONER Economic Development/Redevelopment Division of the Public 
Affairs Department 
 

RECOMMENDATION Approve 
 

 
 
 



Facade Improvement Grant Staff Summary 
Loan Committee Meeting 

September 24, 2013 
3:30 pm City Hall Annex Conference Room 

 
Property Address:   418 Basic Road 
Applicant:    Andy Nguyen, In-n-Out MP&E Services, LLC 
Proposed Used:   Mechanical, Plumbing, & Electrical Service Co 
Redevelopment Area:   Downtown 
City Zoning:  DHC-RD – Downtown Highway Commercial 
Design Review Required: Yes 
Building Permit Required: Yes 
 
Summary   
The property at 418 Basic Road was formerly used as a residential property— the 
applicant has applied for a residential conversion and design review of the property with 
the intention of operating their mechanical, plumbing, and electrical service company 
from this location. The conversion request and design review are still under review by 
other city departments, but staff doesn’t anticipate any issues with the request and/or 
review. The applicant will bring four (4) full-time office personnel and six (6) full-time 
field personnel to this new location. This applicant participated in our Facade 
Improvement Program last fiscal year and successfully completed extensive renovations 
to the property at 414 Basic Road. The applicant currently owns and operates a general 
construction business, K&N Construction, Inc., from the location. This application is for 
a Facade Improvement Grant and will include the following improvements: 
 

• Landscaping with trees, shrubs, and rocks; 
• Concrete including new curb and gutter; 
• New commercial storefront metal, clear ionized dual panel glass, Low E tempered 

and tinted; 
• Remove existing siding and replace with three (3) coat stucco; 
• New fascia; 
• Refinish parapet; 
• Paint entire building, including split rock facing; 
• New roof (not an eligible program expense). 

 
Eligibility for Funding 
 
Building is 1,286 square feet allowing for a maximum reimbursement of $15,000  
 
The applicant provided the following three estimates:    
 
*K&N General Construction, Inc. - $58,560 
Legend Construction & Development - $73,674 
Filios Construction, Inc. - $87,000 



 
*The applicant intends to use K&N General Construction for the project.  
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
This application and the financial capacity and history of the applicant were sent to the 
National Development Council (NDC) for review. The NDC provided a favorable 
analysis of the applicant and expressed no concern regarding his capacity to complete the 
project.  
 
Based on the improvements that will be made to the building and job creation in the 
Downtown Redevelopment Area, this application furthers the goals and priorities of the 
Redevelopment Agency. 
 
It is the recommendation of staff that the Loan Committee conditionally approve the 
Facade Improvement Grant to 418 Basic Road in an amount not to exceed $15,000 based 
on the following listed conditions of approval:   
 

1. Applicants obtaining the required building permit prior to construction 
commencing; 

2. Execution of Grant Agreement; 
3. Applicants to provide Redevelopment Agency staff with a copy of the Certificate 

of Occupancy for the residential conversion of this structure into a commercial 
use prior to any reimbursement;  

4. Applicants submitting all required paperwork for reimbursement;  
5. Applicants to provide Agency with a copy of contractor’s current City of 

Henderson Business License and State Contractor’s License;  
6. Applicants are encouraged to join the Water Street District Business Association. 
 

























































 
 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
REGULAR MEETING SEPTEMBER 24, 2013  LC-005

 
SUBJECT REQUEST FOR A TENANT IMPROVEMENT GRANT FOR 418 

BASIC ROAD 
 

PETITIONER Economic Development/Redevelopment Division of the Public 
Affairs Department 
 

RECOMMENDATION Approve 
 

 
 
 



Tenant Improvement Grant Staff Summary 
Loan Committee Meeting 

September 24, 2013 
3:30 pm City Hall Annex Conference Room 

 
Property Address:  418 Basic Road 
Applicant:   Andy Nguyen, In-n-Out MP&E Services, LLC  
Proposed Used:  Mechanical, Plumbing & Electrical Service Company 
Redevelopment Area:  Downtown 
City Zoning:                           DHC – Downtown Highway Commercial 
Design Review Required:      Yes 
Building Permit Required:     Yes 
 
Summary   
The property at 418 Basic Road was formerly used as a residential property— the 
applicant has applied for a residential conversion and design review of the property with 
the intention of operating a mechanical, plumbing, and electrical service company from 
this location. The conversion request and design review are still under review by other 
city departments, but staff doesn’t anticipate any issues with the request and/or review. 
The applicant will bring four (4) full-time office personnel and six (6) full-time field 
personnel to this new location. This applicant participated in our Tenant Improvement 
Program last fiscal year and successfully completed extensive renovations to the property 
at 414 Basic Road. The applicant currently owns and operates a general construction 
business, K&N Construction, Inc., from the location. This application is for a Tenant 
Improvement Grant and will include the following improvements: 
 

• Frame and finish of new walls; 
• Repair and/or install drywall, patch, tape and texture; 
• Replace and/or relocate interior doors and hardware; 
• Install crown molding; 
• Upgrade and/or relocate plumbing; 
• New HVAC; 
• Install receptionist area with granite counter, stone veneer, and drywall; 
• Upgrades to restroom to satisfy ADA requirements; 
• Cabinets and granite countertops in employee break room; 
• New flooring to include ceramic tile and stamped concrete; 
• Three (3) color interior paint. 

 
Eligibility for Funding 
 
Building is 1,286 square feet allowing for a maximum reimbursement of $32,150  
 
The applicant provided the following three estimates:    
 
*K&N General Construction, Inc. - $98,914.80 



Legend Construction & Development - $110,850 
Filios Construction, Inc. - $172,000 
 
*The applicants intend to use K&N General Construction for the project.  
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
This application and the financial capacity and history of the applicant were sent to the 
National Development Council (NDC) for review. The NDC provided a favorable 
analysis of the applicant and expressed no concern regarding his capacity to complete the 
project.  
 
Based on the improvements that will be made to the building and job creation in the 
Downtown Redevelopment Area, this application furthers the goals and priorities of the 
Redevelopment Agency. 
 
It is the recommendation of staff that the Loan Committee conditionally approve the 
Tenant Improvement Grant to 418 Basic Road in an amount not to exceed $32,150 based 
on the following listed conditions of approval:   
 

1. Applicants obtaining the required building permit prior to construction 
commencing; 

2. Execution of Grant Agreement; 
3. Applicants to provide Redevelopment Agency staff with a copy of the Certificate 

of Occupancy for the residential conversion of this structure into a commercial 
use prior to any reimbursement;  

4. Applicants submitting all required paperwork for reimbursement;  
5. Applicants to provide Agency with a copy of contractor’s current City of 

Henderson Business License and State Contractor’s License;  
6. Applicants are encouraged to join the Water Street District Business Association. 
 



























































 
 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
REGULAR MEETING SEPTEMBER 24, 2013  LC-006

 
SUBJECT REQUEST FOR A SIGN GRANT FOR 418 BASIC ROAD 

 
PETITIONER Economic Development/Redevelopment Division of the Public 

Affairs Department 
 

RECOMMENDATION Approve 
 

 
 
 



Sign Grant Staff Summary 
Loan Committee Meeting 

September 24, 2013 
3:30 pm City Hall Annex Conference Room 

 
Property Address:   418 Basic Road 
Applicant:    Andy Nguyen, In-n-Out MP&E Services, LLC 
Proposed Used: Mechanical, Plumbing & Electrical Service 

Company 
Redevelopment Area:   Downtown 
City Zoning:  DHC - Downtown Highway Commercial 
Design Review Required: Yes 
Building Permit Required: Yes 
 
Summary   
The applicant is requesting a Sign Grant for a mechanical, plumbing, and electrical 
service company to be located at 418 Basic Road in the Downtown redevelopment area. 
The applicant participated in the FIP and TIP last fiscal year and successfully completed 
improvements to the property located at 414 Basic Road. Mr. Nguyen currently owns and 
operates his general contracting company, K&N Construction, from that location. The 
applicant expects to employee ten (10) full-time employees from this new business.   
 
Per the Program Guidelines, the applicant requested and received estimates from three (3) 
licensed sign companies. Those estimates are as follows:   
 
Nevada Sign – $3,785.00 
Signs Now of LV – $8,861.38 
*Citrus Signs – $3,300.00 
 
*The applicant intends to use Citrus Signs. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
It is the recommendation of staff that the Loan Committee conditionally approve the Sign 
Grant to 418 Basic Road in an amount not to exceed $3,300.00 according to the 
following conditions: 
 

1. Applicant obtaining the required building/sign permit prior to construction 
commencing; 

2. Execution of Grant Agreement;  
3. Applicant submitting all required paper work for reimbursement; and 
4. Applicant is encouraged to join the Water Street District Business Association. 
 
























	Loan Committee Agenda 9.24.13 pdf
	LC001- Minutes from 8.27.13_9.24.13 pdf
	08-27-13 ap FINAL_9.24.13 pdf
	LC002_ 429 W Basic Rd pdf
	Staff Analysis_pdf
	LC003_ 206 W Basic Rd_pdf
	Staff Analysis_pdf
	LC004_ 418 Basic_MP&E_092413_AGN_pdf
	FIP Staff Ana_418 Basic_MP&E S_092413_pdf
	FIP App Pack_418 Basic_092413
	LC005_ 418 Basic_MP&E_092413_AGN_pdf
	Staff Ana_TIP_418 Basic Rd_MP&E_092413_pdf
	TIP App Packet_418 Basic
	LC006_ 418 Basic_MP&E_092413_AGN_pdf
	Sign Staff Ana_418 Basic_MP&E_092413_pdf
	Sign Rendition_418 Basic
	Sign App Pack_418 Basic

